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THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable company
for the year 1 September 2024 fo 31 August 2025. The annual report serves the purposes of both a trustees' report,
and a directors’ report and strategic repaort under company law.

At the end of the 2024/2025 academic year the Academy Trust cperated 7 special academies for pupils aged 2 —~ 19
across Oxfordshire. The schools had 782 commissioned places in 2024/25.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Academy Trust s a company limited by guarantee and an exsmpt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The charitable company operates as The Gallery Trust.

The trustees of The Gallery Trust are also the directors of the charitabie company for the purposes of company law.
Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved, are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' lighility

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to he a membar, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

Trustess' indemnities

There were no provisions required for third party indemnity, In accordance with normal commercial practice, The
Gallery Trust purchased insurance to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or
omissions occurring whilst on Trust business.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Gallery Trust's Memorandum and Articles of Asscciation are the primary govemning documents of the Trust.
The Articles of Association require that there are at least three Members and up to ten Trustees. Details of The
Gallery Trust's Members and Trustees during the reporting period are provided on page 3. The Trust has five
members, in accordance with the Department for Education's recommendation. The Trust currently has
sevenTrustees. The appointment of Trustees is ratified by the Members,

All Trustees are required to confirm that they comply with appropriate staiutory eligibility regulations for their role
and undertake an Enhanced Disclosure and Barring Check. Members, Trustees and Governors are reguired o sign
the Trust's Code of Conduct annually and to comply with the requirements of the Trust's Register of Business
Interests. :




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Policigs and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

In order to support effective governance, an induction and training programme is in place for Trustees. External
training is obtzined from the Natiohal Governance Association, Oxfordshire County Councll, the Trust's legal
advisers Biake Morgan LLP, Confederation of School Trusts, and other providers, Training and induction is
organised by the Board's Governance Manager and is individually tailored to meet the needs of new Trustess.
Copies of policies, accounts, minutes, guldance, strategic plans and cther documents relevant to the role are
provided. Governor Hub is used to distribute information. As a result, Trustees have a knowledge and
understanding of the Trust's strategic vision and aims, day-to-day operation and management, their roles,
responsibilities and accountabilities, and the duties of a Trustee and a Director. It is also important that Trustees
gain eh awareness of the nature of students’ Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and how the Trust,
as a Special Trust, differs from mainstream education providers. The Board of Trustees gains insights intc the
operafion of academies through pre-arranged visits to schools, including learning walks, meetings with staff,
attendance at soclal events, such as assemblies, and information obtained through attendance at Board and
committee meetings. Trustees also attended workshops led by a National Leader of Governance.

All Trustees were signed up to the National Governance Association leaming website for governor training as well
as being directed to the Oxfordshire County Council opportunities. Trustees receive appropriate safeguarding
training in accordance with statutory guidance.

Fellowing an assessment of new Trusiees’ areas of experience and expertise, Trustees are invited to join
appropriate committees.

Organisaticnal structure
The governance structure of the Trust consists of Members, Trustess, Chief Executive Officer, Trust central
executive team, and committees including Local Academy Boards and Rapid Improvement Boards.

Mrs M K Willett MBE is the Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer for the Trust.

Members have a constitutional role; Trustees have a strategic role. Trustees can delegate responsibilities to
committees in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.

The Scheme of Delegation specifies the structure for strategic and operational decision-making, and
authorisation processes for governance, HR and finance. The Scheme of Delegation was reviewed and updated
in the spring ferm and approved in the Board meeting on 11 March 2025,




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Members

Members have a constitutional role in the Trust. To monitor the effectiveness of the Board of Trustees and to ensure
that the Board is upheolding the vision and values of the Trust, the Members demonstrate competences in
governance, education, risk management and strategic leadership within its membership, The Members hold the
Beard to account for the outcomes of the Trust. To ensure Members are fully cognisant with Trust business, strategy
and operation, Members receive minutes from Trustee mestings. Members meet with the Chief Executive Officer
and Chair of Trustees to receive information regarding the performance of the Trust and meet annually with
Members at the Annual General Meeting.

Specific duties of the Members:

+» the subscribers to the Trust's Memorandum of Association (where they are founding members) may amend
the Articles of Associaticn (the articles include a definition of the Trust's charitable objects and governance
structure) subject fo any restrictions in the Articles or in the Trust's Funding Agreement or charity law. The
Funding Agreement is the contract between the Secretary of State for Education and the Trust that sets out
the terms on which the Trust is funded

« appcint and remove Trustees

« appeint the Trust's auditors and adopt the Trust's audited annual accounts (subject to the Companies Act
2008).

Trustees

The Trustees are responsible for: ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction; holding senior leaders to
account for the educational performance of the organisation and its pupils; the appraisal and performance
management cf staff; overseeing the financial parformance of the organisation and making sure that funding is well
spent. The Trustees drive the management of the Trust and oversee the financial performance of the Trust. The
Trustees comply with the Government and Department for Education requirements, company law, and charity law.
The Trusiees have legal responsibilities through the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Trust, under
company law as Directors, and under charity law as Trustees.

Specific Duties of the Board of Trustees:

« ensures the quality of the Trust's educational offer, overseeing standards and ouicomes

- monitors and evaluates the progress of strategic objectives within schools' Rafsing Achievement Plans and
the Trust's Strategic Plans

oversees key performance data

recommends changes to the Articles of Asscciation and Funding Agreement to the Members

ensures that the Trust aperates within the Funding Agreement

approves changas o the Schame of Delegation

confirms the appointment of Chairs of Local Academy Boards

manages the Trust's finances and property including:

» compliance with The Academy Trust Handbook. The Handbook sets out the financial management,
confrol and reporting requirements that apply to all Academy Trusts. It descrines a financial
framework for frusis that focuses on principles rather than detailed guidance and reflects their
accountability o Parliament and to the public.

» approval of the Trust's annual 3-year revenue and capital budget on the recommendation of the
Finance and Personnel Commitiee

« recommendations to the Members regarding the annual reperts and accounts for filing at Companies
House

oversees risk management

participates in the recruitmeant of senjor staff

receives and considers repotis from committees

appraises the Chief Exacutive Officer

5 & o & * @




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer, and has overall responsibility for the Trust's finances and
financial effectiveness. The Chief Executive Officer is an ex-officic Trusiee.

The Chief Executive Officer is held accountable by Trustees and Members for the performance of the Trust, and the
cutcomes of schools in the Trust. The Chief Execuiive Officer leads strategic school improvement, warking in
collaboration with senior leaders, The Chief Executive Officer maintains an overview of the national education
agenda and supperts scheol [eaders to focus on outcomes for pupils in their individual schools.

Commiitees

The Trust has several commitiees with membership comprising of Trustees and Local Academy Board or Rapid
Improvement Board members, which are attended in an advisory capacity by senior staff.

Committess provide authoritative and knowledgeable guidance, reports and data to the Board of Trustees. The
following committees report to the Board:
« each school is supported by a Local Academy Board, which undertakes responsibiliies delegated by the
Board
« Trust Finance and Personnel Committee
«+ Trust Audit and Risk Committee
» Trust Schools and Education Committee

Other committees are convened as and when necessary. These include Pay, CEC Appraisal, Head Teacher
Appraisal, Staff Discipline, Pupil Discipline and Discipline Appeal Committees.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Arrangements for setting the pay and remuneration of the Trust's key management personnel are reviewed in
accordance with DfE guidance by the Pay Committee, reporting to the Finance and Personnel Committee, and
approved by the Trusfees. The Trust follows the pay arrangements for maintained schools in England and Wales for
teachers and for support staff. The Trust's teachers’ pay policy is based on the national agreed pay scale as
outlined in the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Decument (STPCD). The Trust adheres fo Local Government
terms and conditions for support staff {Green Book) and follows the Local Government pay spine.

The only Trustee to receive remuneration is the Chief Executive Cfficer using the arrangement detailed above. This
remuneration is received solely in respact of services provided in undertaking the role of Chief Executive Officer
under a contract of employment, and not as a Trustee.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Trade union facility time

Relevant unicon officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during
the relevant period

Full-time equivalent employee number

Percentage of time spent on facllity ime
Parcentage of ime

0%

1%-50%

51%-99%

100%

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time

Total pay bill

Percentage of the fotal pay bill spent on facility time

Paid trads union aclivities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours

0.40

Number of employees

1

13,997,009




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Engagement with emplovees

The Gallery Trust recognises that its strongest resource are the people that make up its workforce. A skilled,
qualified, diverse and engaged workforce is critical to achieve the Trust's objectives.

The Trust strives to create an open culture throughout all of its establishments which is in accerdance with its vision
and values. Respect and trust are core values in the Trust and these principles underpin interactions between staff
at all levels of the organisation. The acknowledgement of the valus of engaging staff through collaboration and
communication is embedded. The mechanisms for keeping staff informed include regular mestings of whole staff
groups (e.g. daily and weekly staff meetings), professional networks (e.g. specialist groups within the staff body,
curriculum warking groups and ferums), peer groups {e.g. mestings between Head Teachers and senicr leaders),
sharing information on operational initiatives and strategic objectives (e.g. Raising Achlevement Plans), and
communications between line managers and staff, including appraisal and wellbeing meetings.

Staff across the esiablishments meet regularly to share information, to work together cn common themes, and to
enable staff to become involved in wider Trust activities beyond their own schools.

The Trust exscutive team meet frequently with senior lsaders in schools during face-to-face visits and in cnline
meetings, and the executive team has regular scheduled meetings with Head Teachers. All Head Teachers mest
with the Trust's executive team on a regular basis. The Trust holds two conferences a year that are attended by
trustees, Head Teachers and senior leaders from the schools and the Trust.

The Trust executive team believes that Individual interaction with staff is an important way to develop understanding
of the circumstances in which staff work. The Trust's executive team works with establishments in the Trust to
ensure that they remain in fouch with strategic issues and oparational challenges, to meet staff, and to celebrate
successes and achievemenis.

The Trust will continue fc expand its existing network of communications to enhanca a listening culture and to foster
relationships and partnership warkirg at all levels of the organisation.

The Trust invests in training, talent management and Continued Professional Develcpmeni (CPD}, recognising that
the personal and professicnal development of employees and succession planning is a key factor in the Trust's
strategy for success.

The Trust Strategic Plan introduced a people strategy to develop and implement processes to enable the Trust to
recruit, train, develop, retain, and reward our staff. All staff benefit from the Wellbeing Charter, which aims to
improve the health and weallbeing of our workforce.

The Trust strives to be a responsible employer in its approach to the pay and benefits for employees, and cbserves
the School Teachers' Pay and Conditions Document for teachers and the Green Book for support staff. Employees
are strongly encouraged to pariicipate in the Trust's pensions schemes, Teachers Pension Scheme or Local
Government Pension Scheme.

The Trust haé positive relationships with trade unions and recognises all {rade unions representing staff in the Trust.

The health, safety, support and wellbeing of employees is a consideraticn in deciding strategies and approaches.
The Trust has comprehensive health and safety policies, induction, continual professional development, and training
programmes. The Trust has an active redeployment policy, which provides the opportunity for staff to move across
establishments on a permanent, temporary or seconded basis.

The Trust is committed to employing people with disabilities and acknowledges the benefits of empioying disabled
staff as this increases the number of applicants available: creates a diverse workforce; and brings additional skills
and experience. Tha Trust alsc recognises that the benefits of retaining an experienced and skililed employee who
acquires an impairment during empleyment usually far exceeds any possible disadvantage of retenfion. Employing
people with disabilities is embedded within the Trust's vision and values and this ethos is applied throughout the
organisation. The Trust's Safer Recruitment policy ensures high standards of Safeguarding and removes the risk of
discrimination in the recruitment process.




THE GALLERY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust

It is vital for the Trust to operate effective business relationships with a wide range of suppliers and contractors to
ensure the needs of establishments are met effectively and efficiently and in accordance with value for money
principles and procurement ragulaticns, All supplier related activity is managed in line with statutory and regulatory
guidance. including the Academy Trust Handbook, the Funding Agreement, and internal policies. e.g. Infernal
Financial Regulations and Purchasing and Tendering Policy. All orders are placad through the Trust's financial
system with existing suppliers, and authorisation is obtained when new suppliers are added with bank details
undergoing rigorous checks. Service Level Agreements are required to be completed before contracts are
approved. Contracts are managed closely by staff to ensure value for money and effective services, and the Trust
requires regular contractor reporting to manage, monitor and evaluate performance. A contracts register is used to
manage and monitor contract renewals and to ensure that the trust is securing best value for money through
aggregated procurement and cellective buying agreements.

An important part of the Trust's culture is the promction of high standards of legal, ethical, environment and
employee relations within the organisation and amongst suppliers and contractors.

All procurement activities follow statutery guidance, and tenders for large contracts include a due diligence process,
scrufiny of data security, coporate responsibility, value for money, standards. and any potential reputational issues.

A part-time Trust procurement lead has been appointed, they have completed government and DfE training on the
regulatery changes to the Procurement Acf, regularly atiends sector procurement network meetings and has
introdluced a procurement strategy, procurement pipeling and new policies and procedures.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations
The Gallery Trust is a Multi Academy Trust. The Trust is not currently linked to other organisations and has no
subsidiary companies. Details of related pariies and transactions during the year are set out in notes 11 and 24.

Objectives and activities

Trust Overview

The Gallery Trust is a multi-academy trust dedicated to providing outstanding education and support for young
people with special needs and disabilities, enabled through:

« Commitment to special educafion - stiving to provide the best specialist leaming experience for all
students

« Oppertunities for all to learn — ensuring that students and staff have access to learning pathways which
enhance their lives

« Genuine respect and value — creating relationships which promote trust, confidence and respect within
environments which are safe and secure

The trust is currently made up of:
« Seven special schools
« One special free school in pre-opening — Artemis Academy
« Outreach service
+ Short Breaks provision

« ITT, ECT and NPQ fraining provision
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Our schaols
Primary special 5 - 11

+ Northern House Academy, Oxfard, which makes provision for 91 students with SEMH and ASC needs:
www.northernhouseacademy.co.uk

All through special 2 - 19

« Bardwell School, Bicester, which makes provision for 112 students with PMLD, SLD and moderale
Cogniticn and Learning needs: www.bardwell.oxon.sch.uk

« Mabel Prichard Schocl, Oxford, which makes provision for 114 students with PMLD, SLD and moderale
Cognition and Learning needs: www.mabelprichard.org

» Springfield Scheol, Witney, which makes provision for 121 students with PMLD, SLD and moderate
Cogniticn and Learning needs: www.springfield.oxon.sch. uk

Primary through t6 secondary special 7 -~ 18

« Bloxham Grove Academy, Bloxham, which makes provision for 80 students (planned places of 100) with
moderate  Cognition and Learning needs and sassociated SEMH and ASC needs
www.bloxhamgroveacademy.co.uk

Secondary special 10 - 18

« Iffley Academy, Oxford, which makes provision for 180 students with moderate Cognition and Leaming
Needs and associated SEMH and ASC needs: www.iffleyacademy.co.uk

» Qrion Academy, Oxford, which makes provision for 73 students (planned places of 108) with SEMH and
ASC needs: www.oricnacademy.co.uk

Trust overview
« 782 students (769 March 2025, 742 academic year 2023 - 2024)
«+ 14 students in Early Years Foundation Stage {1.8%)
« 56 students in K81 (7.2%)

222 students in KS2 (28.4.%)

278 students in our primary provision {35.6%)
262 students in KS3 (33.5%)
» 153 students in KS4 {19.6%)

415 students in our secondary provision (63.1%)
» 75 students in our sixth form provision (9.6%}

452 staff (446 academic year 2023 — 2024)

-

« 7 staff undertaking Initial Teacher Training in our schools

« 9 ECT teachers

« 186 students benefit from short breaks provision {24%)

+ 12 students benefit from community learning support during the evenings and weekends (3.5%)

This annual report provides a comprehensive review of The Gellery Trust's progress against our strategic plan for
the academic year 2024 - 2025 and highlights both the sustained impact of our work across the Trust and the
emerging pricrities shaping our next phase of development.

=10 -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Overview of the areas we are proud of from Phase 1 of the strategy
1. Places where innovation drives learning

Across The Gallery Trust, our schools are committed to delivering personalised, high-mpact leaming experiences
shaped by innovation and ambition. Over the past year, we have made significant strides in curriculum
development, assessment alignment, and the integration of research-informed practice, all of which have enhanced
the quality and relevance of our aducational offer.

Curriculum models are increasingly coherent and purposeful, with all schools embedding the Universal, Enhanced,
and Bespoke Offer fo ensure students receive the right level of challenge and support. Subject-specific innovation is
thriving, supported by Trust-wide networks in Maths, Reading, and Phonles, alengside the introduction of the
Reading Project and upcoming Phonics Network. These developments are enhancing pedagegy and fostering
collahoration around effective curriculum planning and delivery.

Schools are adopting new technclogies to transform assessment and learning journeys. The roll-out of platforms
such as Earwig and Evidence for Learning has improved how student progress is recorded, analysed, and
celebrated. This digital innovation supports greater alignment across schools and facilitates professional dialogue
around outcomes and next steps.

We continue to invest in enquiry-led practice. Action research projects—such as pupil-led behaviour support at
Northern House and participation in naticnal initiatives are helping to shape more inclusive, responsive, and
impactful approaches to teaching and suppaort.

Our commitment to innovation ensures that learning remains dynamic, adagtive, and deeply rooted in the needs of
our students. These advances not enly strengthen cutcomes but 2lso empower staff fo lead change with creafivity,
evidence, and purpose.

2. Places where relationships drive engagement and achievement

At the heart of every school within The Gallery Trust is a commitment to building strong, frusting relationships that
underpin meaningful engagement and sustained achievement. Our teams work tirelessly to create safe, nurturing
environments where students feel seen, supported, and empowered.

We have continued to strengthen collaboration acress the Trust, enabling staff at all levels to share practice, solve
challenges together, and develop profassionally. Our Inclusion Advecatas, Aftendance leads, and multidisciplinary
teams are making a tangible difference in the lives of students and familles, especially those with the most complex
naeds.

Trust-wide efforts to align leadership behaviours, implement safeguarding enhancements, and suppert pastoral care
have led fo more consistent and impactful student experiences. This relationship driven ethos is core to our vision
and essential to every success we achieve.

3. Places which provide exceptional knowledge and support

The Gallery Trust continues to be recognisad for the depth of knowledge and high-guality suppert that underpin our
school improvement journey. Our tiered School Improvement Strategy is firmly embedded, with 100% of schools
evidencing measurable progress through rigorous Challenge and Support cycles, Inclusion Learning Walks {ILVWs),
and the use of School Health Dashboards.

All schools have benefitted from enhanced support via our Education Directors, with notable successes at Bardwell
and Bloxham Grove, both of which have moved up tiers following rapid, well led improvement. Schoofs such as
Orion Academy have sustfained progress through focused action planning, while Northern House and Mabel
Prichard continue o demoenstrate sector-leading practice.

We have significantly strengthened assessment across the Trust through the rollout of aligned platforms - Evidence
for Learning in community special schools, and Earwig in others - enabling richer, more consistent insight into
student progress. The integration of these tools is informing data-driven leadarship decisions and has created a
solid foundation for Trust-wide moderation and evaluation.

-1 -
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Our commitment to research and development has alsc grown. From Northern House's pupii-led bahaviour werk to
partnerships with the Universily of Oxford and The Reach Foundation, our schools are actively generating and
applying new knowledge. This culture of continucus learning and inguiry ensures we remain responsive to the
needs of our learners, while centributing meaningfully to the wider SEND education landscape.

With this strong infrastructure in place, our schools are not only supported to succeed, but they are also empowered
to lead, innovate, and sustain high standards for al! learners.

4. Places which inspire and influence

The Gallery Trust continues io be a catalyst for wider system change through the strength of our collaboration,
advocacy, and outreach. Our schools do more than deliver high-quality education, they actively shape the future of
specialist provision across Oxfordshire and beyond.

This year, our influence has grown through meaningful partnerships with local authorities, higher education
institutions, and national research bediss. Projects such as the Trust-wide Action Research programme,
collabaration with the University of Oxford on neurodiversity and PSHE, and participation in the National Institute of
Education’s professional development study, refiect our commitmant fo sector leadership grounded in evidence and
practice.

Internally, cross-Trust networks and communities of practice have flourished, supporting innovation in Maths
Mastery, reading pedagogy, and inclusive curriculum design. Qur Education Directors, Head Teachers, and staff
routinely colleborate across settings to share expertise, co-develop initiatives, and problem-solve with creativity and
fmpact.

Our schools also play an active role in supporting system-wide improvement. Outreach feams continue o advise
and coach colleagues in other settings, and we remain a valued partner to Oxfordshire County Council as we
explore stratagic growth, mest notably through planned expansions and a new special schoal proposal.

tn all these ways, The Gallery Trust not only supports its own community but also inspires confidence, raises
standards, and influences the broader landscape of SEND education.

We remain committed to delivering high-quality, inclusive education that meets the diverse and complex needs of
our learners. Over the past year, we have strengthened our position as a leading provider of specialist aducation,
with notable improvements in attendance, curriculum afignment, teaching and learning quality, and leadership
capacity across our schools.

This report refiects our ongoing drive to secure consistently high standarde and to ensure cur schools are places
where students thrive, staff are empoweared, and communities are valuad, It also marks a pivotal moment as we
lock ahead to the full implementation of Phase 2 of our Strategic Plan, which centres on deepening human
connections, building sustainable systems, and expanding our reach to meet growing demand for high-quality
SEND provision in Oxfordshire and beyond.

The following sections previde a detailed overview of our achievemants, challenges, and strategic priorities, setting
the direction for the academic year 2025 - 2026 and reaffirming our shared commitment to ambition, collaboration,
and inclusion.

-12 -
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Strategic report
Achievements and performance
Key achievements and progress

Quality of education:

- B schools rated Good or batter, with 1 school (good for personal development) involved in the DfE's RISE
programme

« Curriculum models increasingly aligned and ambitious

+ Subject networks (e.g. Maths, Reading) and unified assessment tocls support consistency and best
practice sharing.

Student outcomes:

« Digital assessment systems (Earwig, Evidence for Learning) are now widely adopted, enabling more
personallsed pathways and robust moderation

» Enquiry-led practice, including behaviour research at Northern House and action research in SEMH
provision, has further improved tailored support.

Staff development:

« Strong CPD offer embedded Trust-wide, with emphasis on instructional practice and leadership
development

« Increased participation in national research and partnership programmes supports career prograssion and
reflective practicat

Operational efficiency;
+ Financial planning and staffing are supported by better data tracking and schocl health dashboards
- Ongoing capital planning with OCC for site expansion and long-term capacity growth

« The Trust has introduced streamlined recruitment via MyNewTerm, retention incentives, and flexible
working models.

« Apprenticeships and ITT pathways expand workforce capacity, while secondments and sabbaticals provide
professional growth

Inclusion and well-being:

« All schools rated Good or Qutstanding for Personal Development

- Attendance sirategy showing impact—persistent absence balow national averags.

- Strengthened pastoral provision through specialist roles and improved safeguarding oversight.
l.eadership and governance;

- Trust-wide improvement strategy embedded; all schools show measurable progress. Governance has been
strengthened via standardised reporting

Improved Local Academy Board structures, and increased Trustee engagement

Natfional partnerships with Ambition Institute and Best Practice Network reinforce external recognition of
Trust leadership

.

Successful expansion of the Trust Central Team te support capacity for growth including the foilowing new
posts:

« 2 new Education Directors

+ Short Breaks Manager

-13-
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» Head of Finance
» HR Business Parfner

« Estates Manager

Outreach

» 33% of Oxfordshire schools supported — the highest reach of any Special School Qutreach provider in the
county.

« Over 10C mainstream schools supported this year, with nea:ly 25% re-referring for additonal input and
engaging with Trust-wide SEND clinics.

Direct impact on pupils — cutreach and training have supported schools to reduce exclusions, improve
attendance, and strengthen access to learning for children and young people with complex SEND.

» Commissioned Outreach programme secured for a further 12 months, now extending across all of
Oxfordshire,

Long-term planning and funding opportunities are being explored to sustain and expand oufreach
provision., proposals include:

« Trust-led clinic-style support for mainstream schools.
« Leadership and key worker development packages.
= New Enhanced Pathways support proegramme to strengthen inclusive practice.

« Cufreach extends beyond schools ~- bespoke support for Oxfordshire Hospital Schools and cellaboration
with the Institute of Dentists to embed inclusive practice in unexpected contexts.

Crose-sector influence — inclusive practice extended beyond schools, shaping approaches in health,
community, and professional contexts.

« Pathway to expand paid outreach oppertunities keyond local asuthority grants, ensuring long-term
sustainability and increased reach.

Training and Development

« First national bespoke standalone ITT programme for specialist teachers rewritten and launched — In
partnership with National Training Provider 'Best Practice Network’- enrolment grew from 72 trainees last
year to 125 this year.

« SEND ITT Pathway recognised by Ofsted as ‘picneering’ and ‘innovative’, now shaping national ITT
provision.

+ Specialist training content rewritten to ensure national frameworks reflect the realities of SEND provision.
« Webinars on the four broad areas of SEND need.
« Core Training days that evidence and research driven with SEND lens

« Curriculum subjects re-envisioned and content rewritten to align with realities of teaching in
Specialist settings

« Independent Study Pack written for 4 broad areas of nheed
« ITAP weeks rewritten for greater relevance in specialist settings
« Guest speakers from across the Trust coniributing to delivery

« Collaboration with Ambition Institute & National Institute Of Teachers embedding specialist case studies into
ECT and NPQSENDCO programmes.

.
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[

ECT and NPQ SEND ciuster for Trust and national SEND colleagues

Specialist voice influsncing DIE frameworks, with a proposal to frain DfE siaff in SEND adaptations to
strengthen national understanding and impact.

Reguests to contribute and present at national cenferences, recognising the Trust as an innovator in SEND
development.

Trust CPD Developments

Comprehensive annual CPD programme launched at Orion Academy, embedding high-guality professional
development across the Trust.

SEND pedagogy review initiated at Bloxham Grove Academy, strengthening teaching expertise and
inclusive practice.

Higher education qualifications undertaken (MA in Social, Emotional and Mental Health Difficulties) to
strengthen expertise in trauma and attachment, directly informing the development, writing, and training of
the new Artimus curriculum.

Action Research strands to be developed that diractly benefit Trust schools and shape national practice.

Strategic CPD Growth

'Y

Development of SEND training pathways — from Teaching Assistant through to QTS, NPQ and leadership,
ensuring clear carger progression.

Apprenticeship levy maximised to fund and support staff development.
New bridging ‘Action Research’ foundation qualiflcation introduced, enabling TAs to transition into [TT.
Future Teachers Programme created fo support recruitment and retention across the Trust.

Nafional thought leadership — Trust recognised as a leading voice in specialist education, shaping policy,
influencing frameworks, and positioning SEND expertise at the heart of national conversations.
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Key performance indicators

Student Achievement

School:

Springfield School;
Severe Learning Difficulties {(SLD), Profound and Multiple Learning
Difficulties (PMLD) Recaption -19yrs

4 Year 11 Students in Cohort

Qualification Type:

Pearson Entry Level

Outcomes:
Mathematics yri1- Entry Level 2 - 50% pass
Entry Level 3 - 25% pass
English Yr11 Entry level 2 - 50% pass
Duke of Edinburgh 4 entered - 75% pass Silver Award
School: Northern House Academy:

Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs (SEMH) and Communication
and Interaction needs (ASD) 5-11yrs
17 Year 6 Students

Qualification Type:

Key Stage 2 SATs

Reading (3 pupils entered)

Meet Age Related Expectation {100+ scaled score) = 33.5%
Below Age Related Expectation:

(90-98 Scaled Score) = 66.5%

(80-89 Scaled Score) = 0%

Mathematics (3 pupils entered)

Mee{ Age Related Expectation (100+ scaled score) = 0%
Below Age Related Expectation:

(90-99 Scaled Score) = 100%

(80-89 Scaled Score) = 0%

Spelling and Grammar (2 pupils)

Meet Age Related Expectation {100+ scaled score} = 50%
Below Age Related Expectation:
(90-99 Scaled Score) = 50%

KS 1 Phonics Screening

7 pupils entered

43% Met expected standard

School:

Iffley Academy: 5-18yrs

Moderate Cognition and Learning needs (MLD) and associated
Communication and Interaction needs (ASD) and Social, Emotional and
Mental Health needs (SEMH)

K84 Gohort: 32 Students, KS5 Cohort: 18 students

Qualification Type:

Entry Level {EL)

IYr 11 Mathematics

EL3-44%
EL2-21%
EL1-28%

Yr 13 Mathematics

EL 3 -39%
FlL 2 -28%
EL1-33%

Yr 11 English
Reading

EL3-41%
EL2-34%
EL1-9%

Speaking and Listening

EL3-38%
EL2-21%
EL1-28%

(\Writing

EL 3 - 34%
EL 2 ~21%

EL 1-32%
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Yr13 English
Reading

EL 3 ~50%
EL 2 - 39%
EL1~55%

Speaking and Listening

EL 3 -39%
EL 2 ~-39%
EL1-22%

Writing

EL 3 -50%
EL 2 ~22%
EL1-22%

Qualification Type:

IT Users Entry Level Award: Year 11

Level 3 - 9%

Science Entry Level Award : Year 11

EL 2 - 34%
EL3-3%

EL 1 -38%

School:

Qrion Academy:

KS4 Cohort: 13 students

Qualification Type:

GCSE

IArt (2 students entered)
English (2 entered)

Grade 5 - 2 pass
Grade 3x1,Grade 2 x 1

Maths (6 entered) Grade 4 X2, Grade 3 x 3, Grade 2 x 1
Qualification Typs:; Functional Skills
English L1- 10 pass

L2 - 1 pass
Mathematics Functional Skills

.1 - 7 passes

L2 - 3 passes
Maths GCSE (8 students) Grade 4 x 2, Grade 3 x 3, Grade 2 x 1
BTEC Home Cooking Skills 3 pass

School Bardwell Academy:
Severe Leaming Difficulties (SLD), Profound and Multiple
Learning Difficulties (PMLD) 3-19yrs
Year 11 Cohort §

Food Hygiene (High Speed Training) Level 100% passed

School Mabel Prichard:

Multipie Learning Difficulties (PMLD) 3-18yrs

Year 11 Cohort 11 Students

IASDAN Silver Award

Transition and Challenge (Sensory)

82% Pass

17 -
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School

Bloxham Grove Academy:

needs (SEMH)

Year 11 Cohort 6 Students

Modarate Cognition and Learning needs {MLD) and
associated Communication and Interaction needs
(ASD) and Social, Emotional and Mental Health

City and Guilds

Entry Level English

Reading

E117%
E2 17%
E3 49%
Level 1 17%

Wifriting

E1 33%
E2 33%
E3 17%
Lavel 1 17%

Speaking and Listening

E1 34%
E3 48%
L1 18 %

Maths

E117%
E2 34%
Level 1 49%

Personal and Social Development - WJEC Level 2

100% pass

Duke of Edinburgh Bronze (SEND)

50% pass

(Vocational) Bronze at Award
“Discover and Explore”

40% pass

[.eavers Destinations:

Leavers

Destinations

Number

Year 11 (B6 students)

Active Learning — College

—
sy

Abingdon and Witney College

3

EMBS

Qrion Sixth Form

Mabel Prichard Sixth Form

Bardwell Sixth Form

IACE Training

Bloxham Grove Sixth Form

Keits Training Services

lifley Academy

Warwickshire Collage Group

Year 13 (20 students)

Abingdon and Witney College

iActive Learning — College

Mabe! Prichard

[TRAX

Year 14 (12 Students)

IActive Learning - College

Horizons

Abingdon and Witney College

Abingdon and Witney (MAP)

National Star College

[ e oy SN PR 7Y [0S G ) R ) gy D ey D T o) N e
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Public benefit

The Trustess of The Gallery Trust confirm that they have complied with their duty in Section 17(5) of the 2011
Charities Act to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in
exercising their powers or duties.

The primary focus of the activities of The Gallery Trust is to advance the education of students with Education,
Health and Care Plans throughout Oxfordshire. The Trust has finks with all Oxfordshire special schoals, and the
Chief Executive Cfficer, and Head Teachers of schocls in the Trust are members of the Oxfordshire Special Schools
Head Teachers Association.

Underlying this focus is the aim of coniributing to the public good by enhancing the lives of children who have
special educational needs and disakilities, and providing suppert to their families. Students' social, moral, spiritual
and cultural education underpins curriculum frameworks. Students have regular opportunities to engage on a local,
national and glebal level to think about wider issues e.g. poverty, disability, discrimination, equality and the
environment. This maximises students’ potential to develop intc independent and confident citizens who respect the
beliefs of others, and who can make a positive and meaningful centribution to their local community and society as
a whole.

The Trust emphasises awareness of multi-culturai values, knowledge, understanding and acceptance of diversity
and a commitment to equal opportunities, throughout all its activities. The Trust's Safer Recruitment policy ensures
that applications for employment from psople with disabilities are welcomed and processed with positive
consideration when essential criteria are met.

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reascnable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in opsrational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the Board of
Trustees continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.
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Protecting the success of the Academy Trust
Protecting the success of the Academy Trust

The Board of Trustees are fully aware of their responsibilities in the promotion of the success of the Trust.

The Board meets at least six times a year and additional extraordinary genera! meetings are called whan reguired.
During the period under review, the Board met seven timas,

Board meetings are organised by a professional and qualified Governance Professicnal and are structured in
accordance with guidance and the Articles of Associaticn. Documents are circulated with agendas in advance of
meetings. Meetings are attended by members of the executive team in an advisory capacity to ensure Trustees are
provided with information to assist thsir decision making. All issues are discussed in depth at meetings to ensure
that short-term and long-term consequences of decisions are fully explored before decisions are ratified.

Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of the Trust's visicn, ethos and values, the charitable objectives,
and in the best interests of staff, pupils, families and communities. The need to observe statutory and regulatory
compliance is also at the forefront of decision making.

Trustees are appointed to the Board hy the Members following a procass of assessment and due diligence and are
required to demonstrate appropriate skills. All Trustees must comply with the Trusts code of conduct which is
completad annually.

Trustees are aware of their responsibilities in accordance with the Trusts status as a limited company and an
exempt charity. It is critical for the organisation to maintain its reputation fer high standards in achieving its
charitable objectives and in business conduct. The Trust's ambition to maintain its current status as a high
parforming, ethical and reputable organisation informs decision making.

The Board is responsible for setfing, monitoring, and upholding the Trust's strong identity, culture, values and
reputation, and thase quaiities are promoted in all activities. A thorough process of induction and continuous
professional develepment ensures that Trustees are familiar with the need to exercise independent judgement,
reasonable care, skill, and diligence: to avoid confiicts of Interests and not accept benefits frem third parties. The
Trustees are required to work within The Seven Principles of Public Efe (also known as Nelan's Principles):

1. Selflessness
2. Integrity

3. Objectivity

4. Accountability
5. Openness
6. Honesty

7. Lleadership

The Trust works to aitract, develop, and retain qualified, experienced and skilled staff, and recognises the crucial
role of staff in achieving successful outcomes. Please refer to page 8 for further information in the section:
"Engagement with employees {including disabled persons)".

The Trust recognisas the need for effective relationships with suppliers and that these are important in the sucecess
of the organisation. Please refer to page 9 for further information in the section: "Engagement with suppliers,
custemers and others in a business relationship with the Trust".

The Trust has an important duty to benefit the community and the environment. Please ses page 18 which provides
examples of the practical steps that the Trust is taking to reduce energy usage to benefit the environment. Pupils
are taught about environmental issues, including climate change, the deplation of natural rescurces, the threats to
the natural werld, and how thay can tale positive action within their own communities. The Trust's new buiids have
high standards of enargy efficiency and promote sustainability and recycling.
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In accordance with the Trust's vision and values, a core role of the Trust is to have a positive impact on its
community of puplls, staff, parents, and families as well as the wider community. The Trust regards itself as a power
of good, an organisation which is dedicated to improving outcomes for all siakeholders. The values of the Trust are
nof a theoretical statement: they underpin strategic cobjectives and practical decisions at every level. At an
operational level, this is reflected in the importance attached to relationships formed with parents and carers, and
the acknowledgement from all colleagues that the best results for pupils are achieved when decisions and actions
are made in partnership with parents/carers and other professionsls.

Financial review

The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the local authority and the DIE, the use of which is restricted to
educational purpeses. Further income is obtained from Oxfordshire County Council in the form of high needs top up
funding. Both sources of funding are provided on the basis of commissionsd places. The funding received from the
DfE during the period ended 31 August 2025 is shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Excluding the fixed asset fund (representing the net book value of fixed assets and unspent capital grants) of
£66,203,438 (2024: £70,700,924) and the pension deficit fund of £Nil (2024: £618,000), reserves balances amount
to £3,193,780 (2024: £1,670,637). This comprises restricted reservas funds of £2,353,812 (2024: £954,975) and
unrestricted general funds of £839,968 (2024: £715,662).
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Researves policy
The reserves policy:

« confirms the Trust's strategy on the managament of reserves, regarded by Trustess as a key factor in the
financial sustainability and security of the Trust.

« assists in strategic planning by considering how projects, activities and Trust expansion will be funded.
informs the budget planning process.

« informs risk management by identifying any known uncertainties in future funding and income streams.
delivers security of cash flow and shert-term protection against potential changes in funding.

« confirms the approach taken to the reserves held by joining schools.
When considering an appropriate level of reserves, the Trustees consider:

+ unforeseen emergency or other unexpected need for funds, €.g. emergency repairs and maintenance
within the Trust's estates.

unforeseen day-to-day operational costs, e.g. employing temporary staff to cover long-term sick absence. a
fall in a source of income, e.g. pupil transport,

o

funding cuts.

« planned commitments, or designations, that cannot be met by future income alone, e.g. coniributions
towards capital projects which are not funded by Government sources.

+ the need to fund potential cashflow, e.g. funds may need to be spent before a funding grant is received.
unhudgeted, unfunded increased staffing costs which may be imposed by external agencies, including pay
rises, increases in pension contributions,

costs involved in the planned expansion of the Trust in accordance with its agreed vision, e.g. building an
appropriate infrastructure and central staff capacity which can provide meaningfut and effective support to
scheols and partners. There are costs associated with developing the Trust in line with current plans that
require expenditure preceding generated income.

staff cosis incurred ‘at risk', e.g. pre-conversion due diligence work, funding bids and project applications,
free school applications.

enabling the support of schools with initiatives and projects to drive improvement in line with the Trust's
vision and ethos.

the level of additional rescurces which may be required when supporting schools previously caiegorised by
Ofsted as Inadequate.

.

the possibilily that the Trust may be required to support additional expenditure incurred in the completion of
new builds, e.g. landscaping.

During the financial year The Trustees identify:

« when reserves are drawn on, sc that they understand the reasons and can consider what corrective action,
if any, needs to be taken.

« when reserve levels rise significantly so that they understand the reasons and can consider the cormrective
action, if any, that needs to be taken.

+ where the reserves level is below target and consider whether it is due to short-term circumstance or
longer-term reasons which might require a broader review of finances and reserves.

In-year reports provided to the Finance and Perscnnel Committee:

+ compare the amount of reserves held with the target amount or target range set for reserves. explain any
shorifall or excess in reserves against target set.

explain any action being taken or planned to bring reserves into line with target.

consider the use of reserves to support growth or invest in projects to generate income eg outreach
services,
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On 31 August 2025 the Academy Trust held the following Reserves (excluding Fixed Asset Fund which represents
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets and Pension Deficit):

£
Unrestricted General Funds 839,968
Restricted Capital Funds 484,328
Restricted General Funds 2,353,812

Reserves at 31 August 2025 3,678,108

The current reserves policy is for revenue reserves to be at least 10% of the annual income of the Trust. The
amount of revenue reserves held by the Trust as at 31 August 2025 is £3,193,780 which represent 13% of annual
income.

The LGPS Pension is no longer in deficit, but has historically been met in the lenger term from any combination of
increased employer cenfributions. increased government funding or change to scheme benefits. The restricted
funds will be spent in accordance with the terms of the particular funds,

Investment policy
A prudent level of resources to deal with unforeseen contingencies is maintained and the Trust takes a cautious
approach to investments.

The Trust's funds are currently in an instant access account with a UK High Street Bank. The Trust reviews interest
rates and considers investment opportunities on an annual basis. The Trust's pelicy in this period was to only invest
funds in risk free and immadiately accessible deposit accounts.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Senior leaders and Trustees undertake constant assessment of the principal risks and uncartainties facing the Trust
through the activities of the Finance and Personnel Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee which are
reported to the Board.

The Trust has a risk register to recerd and monitor risk which is reviewed on a regular basis by the Audit and Risk
Committee. The register provides an integrated approach to risk and compliance, featuring prepopulated and
teilored risk identification, and monitoring of controls designed to mitigate and monitor risk. Risk categories captured
in the register include: education, safeguarding, finance, estates, health and safety, human resources, ICT data and
cyber, external/strategic and project risks.

Principal risks facing the Trust are predominantly linked to the academies in the Trust and are common to the
education sector.

Risks include:

« Financial Sufficiency: Changes in central and local government grant funding for special schools / SEND /
High-Needs, and whether funding levels fully meet the growing national and local needs, demands and
challenges. Cther financial risks fnclude reduction in income streams; unforeseen increase in costs or
capital repairs; unbudgeted, unfunded pay rises for feaching and support staff, including increased National
Insurance and pension cests, which are enforced by external agencies: inflationary pressures, as special
school pupil place funding has not kept up with inflation for several years: difficulties in securing funding
required o meet the special and specific needs of individual pupils.

Staffing Capacity: The principal HR risks are associated with the recruitment and refention of staff in a
challenging environment, for teachers, educational support staff and support staff at all levels. Oxfordshire
is a challenging location to recruit, due to well above average housing and living cests. As the Trust grows,
this provides staff with a wider range of professional development cpportunities to: work in different schools
and locations across Oxfordshire; develop professional expertise in different special school settings and
wark with wider number of SEND students; get involved in a wide range of wellbeing, training and CPD
programmes; and, engage in Branch-Out andfer Outreach programmes. This variety of choice and
opportunity across the Trust presents existing and new staff with a valuable proposition.

« Energy Management: Volatile and uncertain globa! energy markets, unpredictable and spiralling energy
costs and the government's aspirational sustainability goals and climate action plan targets, present
significant chailenges fo the Trust's financial plans, operational environment and net-zero aspirations. The
Trust has developed a draft sustainability / climate action plan, taken steps to procure energy on an
aggregated basis to secure best value for money and taken steps to reduce energy consumption through
caplital investment in more efficient low carbon heating systems, solar PV and LED lighting.

Building Condifion: Sufficient resources to manage and invest in the estate to ensure school buildings meet
the required reguiatory and legislative standards and are fit for purpese i.e. accassible, compliant, suitable
and sufficient. The Trust became eligible for School Condition Allocation funding from April 2024, the Trust
has condition surveys, asset managemant plan, health and safety audits and statutory compliance festing
and inspections that have fully informed the estates strategic planning, buildings and capital investment
plan for 2024-25 and the medium- and long- term plans, to ensure the limited resources are used in a
strategic, systematic and forward planning way.

ICT and Cybersecurity: The frust face ICT security and cyber security risks dug to the handling of sensitive
data, with threats like phishing and ranscmware increasing. To manage these risks, the trust conducts
regular cyber risk assessments, implement basic security measures (patching, firewalls, multi-factor
authentication), back up data using the 3-2-1 rule, and have a cyber response plan.

Fundraising
The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers,
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
Energy consumption

Aggregate of energy consumption in the year

Emissions of CO2 equivalent

Scope 1 - direct emissions

- Gas combustion

- Fuel consumed for owned transport

Scope 2 - indirect emissions
- Electricity purchased
Scope 3 - other indirect emissions

- Fuel consumed for transport not owned by the Academy Trust

Total gross emissions

Intensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupit

Quantification and reporting methodology

2025 2024
kWh kWh

2,504,495 2,281,714

2025 2024
metric fonnes metric tonnes

302.92 327.52
23.76 24.59
326.68 3521
142.74 136.50
0.69 7.14
4791 485.75
0.60 0.66

The Trust has foliowed the 2018 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2025 UK Government's Conversion Factors for

Company Reporting.

Intensify measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2 equivalent per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector.
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Measures feken to improve energy efficiency
« The trust has drafted its Sustainability and Climate Action Plan, which has helped guide decisions and will
be finalised and launched in autumn 2025. This work is being managed and coordinated by trust leaders
with the support from the trustees.

«» Building on the LED upgraded programme undertaken at Northern House Academy, Mabel Prichard
{Primary), Springfield (Secondary), ifley Academy (Post-18) and Bardwell School in 2023/24 to replacing
old-style florescent lighting with LED lamps or fittings funded through a spacialist government sustainability
grant. Ongoing raplacement work is taking place across the estate, most notable has been the new LED
pansls installed in hygiene rooms at Springfield (Primary.) The design and planning of expansion,
remodelling and refurbishment projects at several schools has taken place this year, which will further
address those areas of the school estate that are underserved, or the quality of natural lighting is an issue.

+ Tha Trust has undertaken several projects to improve the thermal efficiency, weatherproofing and dlimate
control of school buildings through a wide range of SCA funded projects and general maintenance works,
including insulating rooms, replacing failed windows and doors to reducing censumption.

- Due to the high consumption and costs of utilities in several schools, the frust is receiving independent
advice, guidance and support fo look at the reasons for high consumption. Schools continue to be
encouraged to monitor running times of building management systems so that consumption is controlled
and not wastad out of hours.

« Tha new Bloxham Grove Academy opened in January 2024, This school has a solar array, alr-source heat
pumps and heat recovery systems installed, all regulated by the schools building management system.
This year, the Trust has been working with the DfE, technical adviscr, main contractor and specialist M&E
contractors to ensure that the building’s heating and mechanical and electrical systems are operating in the
most effective and efficient way.
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Plans for future periods
Horizon Planning

We remain committed to strengthening cur capacity through continuous lsaming and collaboration, drawing on both
intarnal expertise and external partnerships. As we move deeper into Phase 2 of our Strategic Plan, we will continue
to refine our business operations, school improvement systems, and shared services, ensuring they are agile,
effective, and alignad with our Trust's visicn.

Our strategic priorities will be underpinned by a sharpened focus on evidence-informed practice, inclusive
pedagogy, and leadership development. Specifically, we will:

« Embed research-informed practice across all schools through participation in national research initiatives
and active partnerships with universities and SEND crganisations.

@

Strengthen data-led decision-making, using platforms such as Earwig and Evidence for Learning fo inform
teaching, personalise learning, and track outcomes with greater consistency and clarity.

+ Enhance staff training and wellbeing, expanding our CPD offer with targeted input on trauma-informed
approaches, complex needs, assisiive technology, and instructional leadsrship.

- Advance curriculum design and perscnalisation, ensuring every student accesses a meaningful,
aspirational curriculum that supports Preparation for Adulthood (PA).

- Expand life skils and vocafional pathways, deepening parinerships with employers, colleges, and
community organisations to equip students with real-world experiences and skills.

Build streng family and community engagement, through co-production, advisory boards, and closer work
with external services to suppert joined-up provision.

« Ensure financial resilience and equity, by maximising funding opportunities, streamlining resource
allocation, and evaluating impact through Trust-wide audits and reviews.

In partnership with Oxfordshire County Council, we wili also pursue expansion opportunities across existing schools
and prepare a high-quality bid for the propesed new special school in southeast Oxfordshire. This aligns with our
vision to grow provision that is responsive, high-guality, and meets the increasing demand for specialist education
across the region.

The Phase 2 objectives (2024 - 2028) provide clear direction for improvement and growth, ensuring the Trust
continues to deliver excellence for children and young people with SEND, their families, and staff,
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Priority 1: Places where innovation drives leamning

Cur schools educate the whole child and prepare them for adulthood. Everything we do, from our curriculum to
pastoral care, is maaningful and driven by the needs of our learners.

The Trust's Phase 2 objectives ensure that all schools:

Deliver a curriculum which is powerful, relevant and contextualised to SEND,
Embed robust Raising Achievement Plans hased on forensic self-evaluation.
Maintain strong monitoring and moderation systems which secure consistent outcomes.

Pricritise leadership of teaching and learning as the most important driver of improvement.

Phase 2 objectives:

Attendance in all schools will be at least in line with national averages, with persistent and severe absence
below national levels.

Raising Achiavement Plans identify priorities following robust evidence triangulation and are standardised
across the Trust.

All schools deliver ambitious curriculum models with clear articutation of Trust-wide intent.
Monitoring and mederation are embedded, with single information systems enabling Trust-wide analysis.

Teaching and learning are consistently strong across ali schools, supported by Leadership of Learning
teolkits and evidence-informed practice,

Priority 2; Places where relaﬁonships drive engagement and achievement

Our schools are built on exceptional relationships which promote belonging, confidence, and aspiration. Staff are
role models, and restorative approaches underpin positive and respectful relationships.

The Trust's Phase 2 objectives strengthen digital systems, collaboration, data, and workforce development to
ensure every schoo! benefits from sfrong partnerships and collective capacity.

Phase 2 objectives:

All schocls will have completed the 6-Stage Digital Strategy Audit, informing IT development and a secure
cloud-first culture.

Networks and professional learning communities will be embedded, supported by peer Headteacher
challenge, Excellence Visits, and outward-facing collaboration.

Systematic and consistent data collection will be built into school and Trust calendars, providing Trustees
with meaningful, benchmarked information.

The People Strategy will deliver flexible working options, clear staff career routes, embedded secondments
and sabbaticals, and wellbeing champions in every school.

The 8-Grid model is embedded across appraisal systems, supporting leadership and succession plarning.
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Priority 3: Places which provide exceptional knowledge and support

Our schools are supported by a skilled and experienced central team, delivering high-quality schoo! Improvement
and business services. Phase 2 objectives build on these foundations to ensure consistency, compliance and
efficiency, while strengthening lsadership at all levels.

Phase 2 chjectives;

+ The tiered School Improvement Strategy ensures effective deployment of Trust rescurces, with all
members of the Team Arcund the School clear on their role.

+ New Head Teachers receive comprehensive induction and support, establishing them rapidly as effective
leaders.

» Leadership development courses, New to Headship programmes, and peer mentoring schemss are
embedded, supported by accreditation routes.

« Central business processes undergo phased review, with a three-year business plan datailing actions on
finance, deficit recovery, income generation, and procurement.

» Compliance is embedded into appraisal objectives and committes structures, ensuring frustees have robust
evidence of effectiveness.

» Strategic estates planning documents (educational vision, esiate strategy, asset management plan) guide
sustainable estate development.

Pricrity 4: Places which inspire and influence

Our schools work in partnership with local and national organisations to ensure that children and young people with
SEND receive the education and opportunities they deserve. In Phase 2, the Trust will consolidate its position as a
national leader in SEND outreach, training and growth.

Phase 2 objectives:

+ Cutreach hubs will support mainstream schools through phasad placements and therapsutic/pastoral
programmes, commissicned by local authorities.

« In-reach services will provide direct support to mainstream schools, helping to meet the needs of pupils
with SEND and improve inclusion.

« The Trust will develop and deliver a catalogue of professional develepment, including accredited
qualifications (ILM and equivalent).

« Natichal partnerships with Ambilion Institute, Best Practice Network and universities will expand,
positioning the Trust as a recognised training provider.

« Growth will be carefully managed, with the delivery of our new Spacial Free School Artemis Academy and
by enslring new schools are aligned to Trust values.

+ Strategic governance will be strengthened through structured induction for all new trustees and governors,
supported by a recruitment strategy that sustains effectiveness.

The Trust will continue fo mainfain its status as a leading voice in the SEND arena, working with national
organisations and stakeholders in order to promote the development of SEND strategy in Oxfordshire, and will take
advantage of natworking oppertunities in order to continue to build the excellent reputation of the Trust. The Trust
will continue to work with stakeholders to lobby for equitable funding for SEND pupils.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The Trust holds no Assets and Funds as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.
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Auditor

In so far as the Trusteas are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to male themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The Trustees’ repoit, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company diracters, on .()9/12/25 - and signed on its behaif by:
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Scope of responsibility
As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Gallery Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency
framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility fo the Chief Executive Officer, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propristy and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between The Gallery Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The Chisf Executive Cfficer is also responsible
for regorting to the Board of Trustess any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 7 times during the year. Attendance
during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Mrs H Barter 7 7
Mr R Frost (Resigned 10 September 2024) 0 0
Mr S King (Resignad 8 July 2025) 7 7
Mrs D McMahon 7 7
Mrs A Milward 7 7
Mr C Scrivener (Chair) 6 7
Mrs M K Willett MBE (Accounting Officer) 5 7
Mr M Willis 7 7

3 3

Dr S Terrington {Appointed.11 March 2025)

Strategic discussions at the Trust Board during the year have included the following:
« The future development and growth of the Trust
+ The Gallery Trust Five Year Sfrategic Plan 2022 — 2027
« Consideration of financlal challenges linked to funding
+ Estates development and strategy
« Development of in-reach and out-reach
+ Trustee recruitment
+ Governance arrangemants, the role of committees, and the Scheme of Delegation
+ School improvement and attendance.

The DfE’s Trust Quality Descriptors continue to be used to guide, quality assure and evaluate the work of the Trust.
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The Finance and Personnel committee is a sub-committse of the main Board of Trustees. The purpose of the
committee is to ensure sound management of the Trusl's finances, staff and resources, including proper planning,
monitoring and probity in line with DIE guidelines, the Academy Trust Handbook, and in accordance with
Companies Act and Charity Commission requirements.

Key responsibilities of the Finance and Personnel Committee are:

®

L]

scrutiny of the Trust's financial position.

consideration of approval of statutory submissions, including the Annual Accounts, budget forecasts, school
resource manager self-assessment teol (SRMSAT)

oversee the budget setting process, monitor management accounts, cashflow and balance sheet, track
performance against Key Performance Indicators

review and monitor funding levels for Special Schools and consider implications on budget setting
consideration and approval of significant procuremeants and tenders

oversee financial and resource implications involved in the expansion of the Trust
recommendation / appointment of external auditor

review of People Strategy, HR issues and perfoermance indicators

strategic raview of leadership staffing structures, recruitment and retention

consider the effectivensss and efficiency of business and finance systems

Attendance during the year was as follows:

Meetings attended Out of possible
Mr S King 7 7
Mr C Scrivensr 5 7
Mrs M K Willett MBE ) 7
Mr M Willis 7 7
Mrs D McMahon 7 7
Dr & Terrington (Appointed 11 March 2025) 2 2
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Meetings

The Audit and Risk committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is o maintain an
oversight of the Trust's financial, governance, risk management and internal control systems, report its findings
termly and annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the Board's annual
reporting requirements.

Key issues for the Audit and Risk Commitiee were:
« appoint an internal auditor and receive reports.
« consider the performance of the exfernal auditor
» further develop, monitor and review the risk register.
» agree the internal audit plan for the year.

Attendance during the year was as follows:

Meetings attended Qut of possible
Mr 8 King 3 3
Mrs M K Willett MBE 3 3
Mr M Willis 3 3
Mrs A Milward 3 3

Conflicts of interests

Aregister of the relevant business and pecuniary interests of Members, Trustees and senior employess is updated
regularly and puklished or our school website. This register will also include relevant material interests arising from
close family relationships with other members, trustees or employees. At each meeting, Trustees are required to
declare any new conflicts of interest. The Trustee must absent themselves from the part of any mesting at which
there is a discussion which relates to any part of their declaration. The Trustees must not vote on any such matter
and is not to be counted when calculating whether a quorum of Trustees is present af the meeting.

Review of value for money .

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for meney refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
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The Accounting Officer considers how the academy trusl's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for monsy can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered
improved value for meney during the year by:

« continually reviewing resources required by schools and identifying cost savings through centralisation of
support required.

the effective annual Trust procurement of insurance using the wider CPC procurement framework to secure
best value for insurances which are not covered by the Department for Education's Risk Protection
Arrangement.

working closely with the Local Authority in extending pupil places thus increasing pupil led income

continuing to review subscriptions, licences and Trust support services that can reduce costs when
purchased centrally.

engoing implementation and review of finance software for greater efficiencies across the Trust to mest
statutory compliance, reducing workload and software costs.

achieving successful applications for the DfE Condition Improvement Fund supporting thermal efficiencies,
weather proofing and reducing energy consumption.

receiving decarbonisation grants to replace remazining lighting with high efficiency LED fittings, indicating
electricity consumpfion will be reduced in the next academic year

The purpose of the system of infernal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise
the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks
being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, affectively and economically.
The system of internal scrutiny has been in place in The Gallery Trust for the pericd 1 Septernber 2024 to 31 August
2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's
significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
acccuntability. In particular, it includes:

- comprahensive budgsting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewsd and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

» regular reviews by the Finance and Personnel Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

-

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines; delegation of authority and
segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.
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The Board of Trustees has considered the need for specific internal audit function and while Ross Brooke,
Chartered Accouniants are engaged as the Trust infernal auditor, specific specialists were also engaged for 2024/
25,

The Internal scrutiny programme gives advice on financial and other matters and performs a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

« scrutiny of financial scheme of delegation and review of its application in practice
« Schools’ Single Cenfral Records: all schools

« Safeguarding Audits — Section 175/ 157 audits

» Health and Safety annual audits: all schools

« Pen Testing - Cyber and digital security: all schools

On a regular basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit and Risk and Finance
and Personnel Committees on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of
Trustees' financlal responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the
areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess
year on year progress. The Audit and Risk Committee provides a report annually to the DfE on the programme of
internal scrutiny.

Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the internal auditor and the work of the external auditor:

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management
self assessment tool;

» the work of the Senior Leaders within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustess on ’W and signed on its behalf by:

. {
OPSeiiweney Mt~
Mr C Scrivener Mrs M K Willett MBE
Chair Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of The Gallery Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of
Trustees and the Department for Education (DfE) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms
and conditions of ali funding received by the Academy Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the
Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my censideration | have had due ragard to the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook.

t confirm that | and the Academy Trust's Beard of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
of funds by the Academy Trust, or material nen-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to
date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of Trustees
and DfE,

Mrs M K Willett MBE
Accounting Officer

09/12/25
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
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The trustees (who are also the directors of The Gallery Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025
published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdoem Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the Trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the charitable company and of its inceming resources and application of rescurces, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the Trustees are requirad to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SCRP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to
2025;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonabls and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The Trusiees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitaible company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also respensible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hencs for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detsction of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial
and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propristy and of good financial management. They
are alsc responsible for ensuring that grants received from DIE have bean applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trusteas on 09/12/25  and signed on its behalf by:

:
‘: b
Mr G SCrivener

Chair ==
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE GALLERY TRUST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of The Gallery Trust for the year ended 31 August 2025 which comprise the
statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the accounts, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
appiicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The
Financial Reperting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the
Department for Education.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charifable company's affairs as at 31 August 2025 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended,

- have been properiy prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practics;

- have keen prepared in accerdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2024 to 2025.

Basis for opinign

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
lzw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the accounts’ section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfiled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Conclusions relating fo going concern

tn auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting In the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Basad on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relafing tc events or
conditions that, individually or coliectively, may cas! significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twalve months from when the financial statemenis are authorised for issue,

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are daescribed in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our
auditor's report thergon. The Trustees ara responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Qur responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts of our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are requirad to determine whether
this gives rise to a material misstatement in the accounts themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the Trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identffied material misstatements in the Trustees' report, including the incorporated strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2008 raquires

us to report fo you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from kranches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returng; or

- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that thay give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the Trustees determine is necessary {o enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the accounts, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy
Trust's ability fo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using
the going concemn basis of accounting uniess the Trusiess either intend to liquidate the charitatle company, or have
no realistic alternative but to do se.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts _

Our objectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or arror, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Rsasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered materia! if, individually cr in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and nen-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

+ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement ieam collsctively had the appropriate competsnce,

capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with trusteas and

other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the client's business sector;

« we focused on spacific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material affect on the
financial statements or the operations of the company, including the Companies Act 2008, the Charities Act
2011, DfE requirements, faxation legislafion, data protection, anti-bribery, employment, environmental and
health and safety legislation;

» we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making

enquiries of managemeant and inspecting legal correspondence; and

identified laws and regulations were communicated with the audit team regularly and the team remained

alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

°

*

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, including obtaining
an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

» making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

« considering the internal conirols in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.
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To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

« performed analytical procedures fo identify any unusual or unexpacted relationships;

« tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining whether accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias; and

» Investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

in response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we dasigned procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

+ agreeing financial statement disclosures to undsrlying supporting documentation;
» reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

= enguiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

» reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the DfE and the company's legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulaticns are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliznce with laws and regulations to
enquiry of the directors/trustees and other management and the inspection of reguiatory and legal correspendence,
if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detaect than those that arise from error as they may
involve deliberate concealment or collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporfing Council's wehsite at: https:/f
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of cur auditer's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Gompanies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone othar than the charitable
company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this raport, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Katherine Wilkes BSc FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Gravita Audit Oxford LLP 15/12/25

Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor First Floor, Park Central
40-41 Park End Street
Oxford
OX11JD
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

In accerdance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 20 August 2021 and further to the requirements of the
Department for Education (DfE) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025, we have carriad out
an engagement to obtain limited essurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The
Gallery Trust during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have been applied to the purposes idenitfied
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Gallery Trust and DIE in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Gallery Trust and DfE those matters we are raquired fo
state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent parmitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than The Gallery Trust and DfE, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Gallery Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, undar the requiraments of The Gallery Trust's funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education dated 30 May 2019 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September
2024, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received Is applied for the purposes infended by
Parliament and tha financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of
the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025. We report to you whather anything has come to our attention in
carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received
during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
or that the financial transactions do net conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by DfE. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order fo provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity. )

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
cansequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive apinion.

Our engagement Includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure,

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ Reviewing the minutes of mestings of the Board of Trustess and obtaining representations concerning access
to information, disclosure and provision of information;
Evaluation of the general control environment of the academy trust, extending the procedures required for
financial statemants to include regularity;
Assessment and testing of a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity;
Carrying out substantive testing to cover authorisation of expenditure within internal delegated authorities and
axternally imposed limits;
Consideration of whether activities carried out are within the charitable objects.

.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attenticn which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them,

L;W it %)‘16\/ ALLE

Reporting Accountant
Gravifa Audit Oxford LLP
First Fioor, Park Ceniral
40-41 Park End Street
Oxford

OX11JD

Dated: ...1.51.'].2/2.5,..
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THE GALLERY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Unrestricted

Restricted funds:
General Fixed asset
£ £

- 666,318

24,404,262

Total Total
2025 2024
£ £

624,431 18,175,942

24,513,398 21,506,866
267,352 226,908
45,130 22,273

24,404,262 556,318

25,451,311 39,932,079

23,106,227 4,800,072

28,281,724 23,442,565

23,106,227 4,809,072

28,281,724 23,442 565

1,298,035 {4,252,754)

244,802 (244,802)

4,640,000

(4,165,000}

(2,830,413) 16,489,514

4,640,000 828,000

(4,165,000) -

2,017,837 (4,497,556)

336,976 70,700,984

(2,355,413) 17,317,514

71,762,631 54,435,117

funds

Nofes £
Income and endowments from:
Conations and capital grants 3 68,113
Charitable activities:
- Funding for educational operations 4 109,138
Other trading activities 5 267,352
Investments 6 48,130
Total 490,731
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities;
- Educational operations 9 366,425
Total 7 366,425
Net income/{expenditure) 124,306
Transfers between funds 18 -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 20 -
Adjustment for restriction on pension
assels 20 -
Net movement in funds 124,306
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 715,662
Tetal funds carried forward 839,068

2,353,812 66,203,438

69,387,218 71,752,631
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THE GALLERY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2024 funds General Fixed asset 2024
Notes £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 90,959 - 18,084,883 18,175,942

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations 4 97,706 21,402,160 - 21,506,866

Other trading activities 5 226,998 - - 226,908

Investmants 6 22273 - - 22,273

Total 437,936 21,409,160 18,084,983 39,932,079

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educstional operations 9 437,936 20,487,775 2,516,854 23,442 565

Total 7 437,936 20,487,775 2,516,854 23,442,565

Net income - 921,385 15,568,129 16,489,514

Transfers between funds 18 - 59,590 (58,590) -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension schemes 20 - 828,000 - 828,000

Net movement in funds - 1,808,975 155608,5839 17,317,514

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward 715,662 (1,473,000) 55,192,455 54435117

Total funds carried forward 715,662 335,975 70,700,984 71,752,631
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THE GALLERY TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2025

Fixed assels
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Creditors: ameunts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets fess current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than cne year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

13

14

16

20

18

18

2025
£ £

65,719,110

1,049,681

6,020,983

7,070,664

(2,803,100)

4,267,564

69,986,674

(589,456)

£9,397,218
69,397,218

66,203,438
2,353,812

68,657,250
839,968

66,397,218

2024
£ £

70,083,345

1,773,138

2,819,025

4,692,163

(1,745,845)

2,948,318

73,020,663

(658,032)
72,371,631
(619,000)

71,752,631

70,700,994
954,975
(619,000)
71,035,969
715,662

71,752,631

The accounts on pages 43 to 72 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 09/12/25  and

are signed on their behalf by:

*
Mr G SCAVENRr e
Chair

Company registration number 08334718 (England and Wales)
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THE GALLERY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities 21

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding recelved from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by investing aclivities
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans received/{paid}

Finance costs

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2025
£ £
2,781,504
45,130
748,286
40,000
(444,837)
389,579
(80,107)
(9.018)
(59,125)
3,101,058
2,919,025

6,020,283

2024

22,273
1,177,523
20,000

(579,328)

(5,213)

(92,053)

540,468

{5,213)

443,202

2,475,823

2,919,025
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

The Gallery Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given on page 1
and the nature of its operations are set out in the Trustees' report,

Asummary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncestainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended
Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts
Direction 2024 to 2025 issuad by Department for Education, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainiies related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a pericd of at least
one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no
material uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on & receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expendad during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of mesting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition s deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is
received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability,

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant, Unspent amounts
of capital grants are reflected in the balance shest in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are
recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended. :

Spensorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation 15 recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related
conditions), where the recaipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be relisbly measured.

“AT-



THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

14

1.5

Accounting policies {Continued)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period if Is receivable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are inciuded at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at recelpt, it is recognised in stock and 'Income from
other trading activities’. Upen sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading
activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities’. Where it is impractical to
fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the accounts until they are
sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assels are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case
the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and despreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a

third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of
the obligation can he measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct coste and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
aclivity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and
support costs which are not attricutable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis
consistent with the use of resources. Central staff cosis are allocated on the basis of tima spent, and
depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for iis charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational aperations, including support costs and costs
relating fo the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carisd at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, sither from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over thelr expacted
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued
use of the asset, the relafed grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and carried forward in the balance shest. Dopreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assels have been
acquired with unresfricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.6

1.7

138

1.9

1.10

Accounting policies (Continued)

Depraciation is provided cn all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expecied useful life, as follows:

Leasshold buildings 5% {20 years from conversion (125 years for land))
Computer eguipment 33% (3 years)
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 20% (5 years)
Mctor vehicles 20% (5 vears)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recaverable. Shortfalls between the carrying vaiue of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of financlal activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, itis
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will
pay to setfle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must
provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financtal instruments

The Academy Trust enly holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and
financial liabllities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets

Trade and other debters are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.
Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash atf bank is classified as a basic financial instrumant and is measured at face vaiue.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and
there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or ancther financial instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010
and therefare it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within
categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargeable Gains Act 1992, fo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
PUFPOSES.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"'TPS") and the Local Government Pension Schems ('L.GPS"). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assels are held separately from those of the Academy Trust.
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and contributions are caloulated to spread the cost of pensicns over
employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit methed. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair valus and liabilities
are measured on zn actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities.
The actuarial valuations are obtained at least friennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The
amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the cument service costs and the costs of scheme
introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as
incurred. Net interest on the nat defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial
activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme
assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate
used to discount the benefit cbligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial
gains and lesses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may he used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trusiees,

Restricled fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other rastricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/
doner and include grants from the Department for Education.

Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from DfE. Payments recsived from
DfE and subsequent disbursemeants to students are excluded from the statement of financial activities as the
academy trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The academy trust can use
up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of
financial aclivities. The funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 26.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resuliing accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below. '
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED})
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

2

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit provision depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumpticns. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost or income for pensicns include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension prevision. Furthermore, a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions provision at 31 August 2025. Any differences hetween
the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pansion provision.

At 31 August 2025, the LGPS valuation indicated a surplus of £4.165m (2024: deficit £0.519m). Under
FRS102, the amount recognised is limited by the asset ceiling, which restricts recognition to the extent the
employer can realise an economic benefit. The Trust has determined that it cannct access a refund and is
required to continue contributions af current rates; therefore, no surplus has been recognised. This is a critical
judgement in applying the accounting policy

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

Donated fixed assets - - - 17,304,174
Capital grants - 556,318 £56,318 780,809
Other donations ‘ 68,113 - 68,113 90,959
68,113 556,318 624,431 18,175,042
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

4

Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE grants

General annual grant (GAG)
Other DfE grants:

UIFSM

Pupil premium

Others

Other government grants
Local authority grants

COVID-19 additional funding {DfE)
Recovery premiur and other funding

Other incoming rescurces

Total funding

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

- 7,800,000 7,800,000 7,346,667

- 13,387 13,387 13,221

- 461,390 461,390 376,850

- 138,252 135,252 204 340

- 8,410,029 8,410,029 8,031,078

- 15,975,886 15,875,386 13,100,925

- - “ 266,452
109,136 18,347 127,483 108,411
109,136 24,404,262 24,513,388 21,506,868

Other incoming resources include catering incoma of £95,823 (2024: £84,748) and trip income of £13,315

(2024: £12,958).

Other DfE grants include PE and Sports Grant £69,530 (2024: £78,400), National Tutoring Programme £Nil
(2024: £31,762), Early Careers Framework £8,514 (2024: £Nil), Start Up Grant £Nil (2024: £70,000), and Post

Opening Grant £54,250 (2024; £111,000).

Local authority grants include SEN funding £12,738,288 (2024: £11,425,295) and Teachers' Pay and Pension

Grant £1,007,083 (2024: £1,015,708).

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Pupil transport income
Other income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ £

57,557 - 57,557 75,469
115,436 - 116,438 106,777
93,359 - 93,359 44 752
267,352 “ 267,352 226,998
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

6

Investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2025 2024
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 46,130 - 45,130 22,273
Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations
- Direct costs 17,092,093 4,605,124 1,093,600 22,790,717 15,630,081
- Allocated support costs 2328719 1,736,540 1,425,748 5,491,007 7,812,484
19,420,612 6,341,664 2,518,248 28,281,724 23,442,565
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2025 2024
£ £
Operating lease rentals 12,741 21,816
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 4,809,072 2,516,854
Fees payable to auditor for:
- Audit 22,680 21,000
- Qther services 13,350 13,210
Bank and loan interest 9,018 -
Net interest on defined penefit pension liability 27,000 74,000

Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

payroll

human resotrces

health and safety

estales and facilities management
ICT support

finance and audit services

risk management

school improvement

data proteciion

safeguarding

e & o & & ® 3+ © o @

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

An agresd amaount per pupil from the General Annual Grant (GAG) income and the High Needs funding from

Oxfordshire County Council.
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8

Central services

The amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Ifflay Academy

Bardwell School

Northern House Academy
Orion Academy
Springfield School

Mabel Prichard School
Bloxham Grove Academy

Charitable activities

Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs
Educationa!l operations

(Continued)

2025 2024

£ £

587,895 331,500

233,064 208,850

181,191 158,383

168,446 201,356

238,110 213,632

236,849 217,317

164,555 70,128

1,820,100 1,402,266

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2025 2024

£ £ £ E

365,373 22425344 22,790,717 15,630,081

1,052 5,489,955 5,491,007 7,812,484
366,425 27,915,299 28,281,724

23,442,565
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THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

9 Charitable activities {Continued)
Total Total
2025 2024
£ £

Direct costs
Teaching and educational support staff costs 17,092,093 14,695,899
Depreciation and [oss on disposal _ 4,605,124 “
Technology costs ' 69,620 50,359
Educaticnal supplies and services 126,008 151,782
Examination fees 13,560 20,127
Educaticnal consuitancy 174,576 128,239
Other direct costs 709,738 583,675

22,790,717 15,630,081

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs 2,328,719 2,610,166
Depreciation and loss on disposal 203,948 2,516,854
Technology costs 220,749 206,260
Premises costs 1,632,592 1,393,980
l.egal costs 87,156 70,403
Other support costs 1,068,540 938,046
Governance costs 49 303 76,775

5,491,007 7,812,484
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10

Staff

Staff costs and employee benefits
Staff costs during the year were:

Wages and salaries
Saclal security costs
Pension costs

Staff costs - employees
Agency staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Staff development and other staff costs

Total staff axpenditure

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments
Severance payments

Social security costs include apprenticeship levy of £57,041 (2024: £49,804).

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

2025 2024

£ £
14,086,101 12,722,963
1,616,800 1,270,710
3,007,851 2 524687
18,720,761 16,518,360
419,830 582,808
44 908 37,844
19,185,509 17,139,102
235,213 165,963
19,420,812 17,306,065
29,908 22,942
15,000 14,902
44,908 37,844
2025 2024
Number Number
104 108

342 335

16 15

462 458

- 56 -



THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

10 Staff (Continued)
The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:

2025 2024

Number Number

Teachers 98 99

Administration and support 233 188

Management 15 53

346 340

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding empioyer pension costs and employer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:
2025 2024
Mumber Number

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000
£130,001 - £140,000
£490,001 - £200,000
£200,001 - £210,000

-
N

1

1
7
B
1
1
1
1

H—‘-n—*id-!‘\)m\l

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees, the Senior Executive Team as
listed on page 1 and headieachers. The total amount of key management personnel employee benefits
(including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personnel for thelr services to the Academy Trust was £1,549,386 (2024: £1,720,897).
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"

12

13

Trustees' remuneration and expensas

One or more of the Trustees has bean paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy Trust. The Chief Exacutive Officer and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of Chief Executive Officer and staff members under
thair contracts of employment, and not in respect of thelr services as Trustees.

The value of Trusteas' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

M K Willett MBE (Chief Exacutive Officer, and trustee):

+ Remuneration: £175,001 - £180,000 (2024: £160,001 - £170,000)

+ Employer's pension contributions: £25,001 - £30,000 (2024: £25,001 - £30,000)
Expenses were paid to 1 Trustee consisting of £62 for travel costs (2024, ENil).
Ofher related party fransactions involving the Trustees are set out within the related parties note.

"Employer's pension centributions” relates to employer pension contributions paid in ligu.
Trustees' and officers' insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education's Risk Protection Arrangement {RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy Trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. i is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Computer Fixtures, Motar Total
buildings equipment fittings & vehicles
equipment

£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2024 82,396,234 412,944 185,641 94 457 83,089,486
Additions 56,844 88,675 298,318 - 444 837
Disposals {20,000) - (29,325) - (49,325)
At 31 August 2025 82,433,078 501,619 455,834 84 467 83,484,998
Depreciation
At 1 September 2024 12,554,173 269,968 104,458 77,542 13,008,141
On disposals {20,000) - (29,325) - {49,325)
Charge fer the year 4,605,124 105,463 93,410 5,075 4,809,072
At 31 August 2025 17,139,297 375,431 168,543 82,617 17,765,888
Net book value
At 31 August 2025 65,283,781 126,188 287,291 11,850 65,719,110
At 31 August 2024 68,842,061 142 976 81,383 16,925 70,083,345

Total leasehold land is valued at £9,172,768 at year end (2024: £9,494,906) and includes the land for all
schools except Iffley Academy.
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i4  Debtors

Trade debtors
VAT recoverable
Prepayments and accrued income

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other credifors

Accruals and deferred income

16 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Other loans

Analysis of loans

Not wholly repayable within five years by instalments
Wholly repayable within five years

l.ess: included in current liahilities

Amounis included above

Loan maturity

Debt due in one year ¢r less

Due in more than one year but not more than {wo years
Due in more than two years but not more than five years
Due in maore than five years

2025 2024
£ £

175,303 327,301
174,533 136,488
699,845 1,309,349
1,040,681 1,773,138
2025 2024

£ £

68,897 60,428
419,359 304,950
392,250 292,847
380,414 323,740
1,542,180 763,860
2,803,400 1,745,845
2025 2024

£ £
580,456 658,032
2025 2024

g £
653,047 -
5,306 718,460
658,353 718,460
(68,897) (60,428)
589,456 658,032
68,897 60,428
67,190 60,428
196,171 185,733
326,005 431,871
658,353 718,460
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16  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year {Continued)

A loan of £12,593 from Prudential was transferred to the trust on Bardwell School's conversion from
Oxfordshire County Council on 1 June 2019. The loan was repayable in saven annual instalments of £1,799
and £3,598 remained cutstanding at 31 August 2025 (2024: £5,397 cutstanding).

The Trust has five lcans from the Cendition Improvement Fund, at 31 August 2025 the amount outstanding

was £653,047 (2024: £707,839). Repayments commenced 1 September 2024 and repayments are being
made over the next 10 years from this date.

17  Deferred income

2025 2024
£ £

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within cne year 1,348,069 329,742
Deferred income at 1 September 2024 329,742 288,673
Released from previcus years (329,742) (288,673)
Resources deferred in the year 1,348,069 329,742
Deferred income at 31 August 2025 1,348,069 329,742

Deferred income at year end relates to funding received in advance of £1,347,462 (2024. £329,742) and trip
incoma £807 (2024: £Nil).
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18

Funds

Resfricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE granls

Gther government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE group capital grants
Fixed assets fund

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2024 Income Expenditure transfers 2025

£ £ £ £ £

775,497 7,800,000 (6,466,487) 244,802 2,353,812

- 13,387 (13,387) - -

- 461,390 (461,390) - -

- 135,252 (135,252) . -

179,478 15,975,886  (16,155,364) - -

- 18,347 (18,347} - -

(619,000) - 144,000 475,000 -
335,975 24,404,262  (23,106,227) 719,802 2,353,812
617,649 556,318 - (689,639) 484,328
70,083,345 - {4,808,072) 444,837 65,719,110
70,700,994 556,318  (4,809,072) (244,802) 66,203,438
71,036,969 24,960,580 (27,915,299) 475,000 68,567,250
715,662 480,731 (366,425) - 839,968
71,752,631 25,451,311 (28,281,724} 475,000 69,397,218
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18

Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant represents funding received from the Department for Education during the period
in order to fund the continuing activities of the school. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of
State, the Academy Trust was not subject to limits on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31
August 2025.

Pupil Premium Funding represents funding recelved from the Department for Education (DIfE) to raise the
attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities. The eligibility of the pupils and rates of grant per pupll are
set-out by the DfE. This funding is fo be used for the provision of education.

Cther DfE grants represents other forms of funding received from the Department for Education. This includes
but is not limited to Year 7 Catch Up funding and PE grants.

Cther government grants included Top-up and Other Local Authority Revenue funding represents various
grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

Cther resfriced funds, Other grants represent amounts given to the Academy Trust for specific revenue
purposes.

The pension reserve fund separately identifies the pension deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme,
and threugh which all the movements on the pension scheme are recognised.

DfE group capital grants includes Devolved Formula Capital represents funding provided by the Department
for Education to be used for capital projects. This funding may be used for specific capital projects which are
not considered to ke fixed asset additions.

Capital donations includes various grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

The Fixed Asset fund recognises the net book value of tangitle and fixed assets transferred to the trust on
conversion and additions since conversion.

Unrastricted funds represent other income to the Academy Trust which is not received as funding or with a
specific purpose.

-B2 -



THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

18 Funds {Continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2023 Income Expenditure transfers 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant {GAG) - 7,346,667 {6,630,760) 59,590 775,497
UIFSM - 13,221 {13,221) - -
Pupil premium - 376,850 (375,850) - -
Other DE grants - 294,340 (284,340) - -
Other government grants - 13,367,377  (13,187,899) - 176,478
Other restricted funds - 10,705 (10,708) - -
Pansion reserve (1,473,000) - 26,000 828,000 (619,000}
(1,473,000) 21,409,160 (20,487,775) 887,590 335,075
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE: group capital grants 575,758 780,809 - (738,918) 617,649
Fixed assets fund 54,616,607 - (2,516,854) 17,983,502 70,083,345
Capital donations and denated
assets - 17,304,174 - (17,304,174) -
55,192,455 16,084,983 (2,516,854) (89,590) 70,700,994
Total restricted funds 53,719,456 39,494,143  (23,004,629) 828,000 71,036,969
Unrestricted funds
General funds 715,662 437,936 (437,936) - 715,662
Total funds 54,435,117 39,932,079 (23,442 5865} 828,000 71,752,631
Total funds analysis by academy
2025 2024
Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated as follows: £ £
Central services 3,268,238 1,670,637
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 3,266,238 1,670,637
Restricted fixed asset fund 66,203,438 70,700,994
Pensicn reserve - (619,000}
Tetal funds 69,469,676 71,752,631
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18

19

Funds

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

{Continued)

Teaching and Other costs
educational Othersupport Educational exciuding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2025 2024
£ £ £ £ £ £
[fley Academy 2,875,074 413,280 281,859 448,497 4,018,720 3,783,752
Bardwell School 2,352,801 429,839 72,486 326,039 3,221,165 3,282,828
Nerthern House Academy 1,888,482 272,171 128,551 231,528 2,520,732 3,038,789
Orion Academy 1,853,810 289,264 299,896 419,736 2,862,808 2,930,696
Springfield Scheol 2,534,422 312,001 85,718 275245 3,207,385 2,928,960
Mabel Prichard School 2,414,971 324,386 131,183 234,592 3,105,142 2,321,051
Blexham Grove Academy 1,555,487 140,078 103,033 208,740 2,007,338 9B7, 747
Central services 1,676,946 147,690 13,822 790,805 2,529,363 1,651,888
17,002,093 2,328,719 1,116,658 2,935182 23,472,652 20,925 711
Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted Resftricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2025 are
represented by:
Tangible fixed assets - - 65,719,110 65,719,110
Current assets 839,958 5,748,368 484,328 7,070,664
Current liabilities - (2,803,100} - 2,803,100}
Non-current liabilities - (588,458) - (589,456)
Total net assets 839,968 2,353,812 66,203,438 68,397,218
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are
represented by:
Tangikle fixed assets - - 70,083,345 70,083,345
Current assets 765,464 3,309,050 617,649 4,892,163
Current liabilities (49,802)  (1,696,043) - (1,745,845)
Non-current liabilities - {658,032) - (658,032)
Pension scheme liability - {619,000) - (819,000)
Total net assets 715,662 335,975 70,700,094 71,752,631
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Pension and similar obligations

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Oxfordshire County Council. Both are multi-employer
defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2022.

Coniributions amounting to £374,645 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2025 (2024: £321,403) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulaticns 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers In academy trusts. All
teachers have the oplion to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded schame fo which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliamant.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using nermal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Emgloyer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed
appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the use of future costs, design of benefits
and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 QOctober 2023, with the SCAPE rate,
set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl. The key elemenis of
the valuation outcome are:

1. Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensicnable pay (including a 0.08% administration
tevy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefils is needed.

1. Total schema liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service fo the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional invesiments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The resuli of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,798,152 (2024: £1,269,614).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentaticn is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

- G5 -




THE GALLERY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

20

21

Pension and similar obligations

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2024
Current service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2025

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2024
Interest income
Actuarial gain
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August 2025
Restrictioh on scheme assets

Net assets recognised

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net (expenditure)/income for the reporting pericd (as per the statement of
financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Investment income receivahle

Finance costs payable

Defined benefit pension costs less coniributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Depreciation of tangible fixed assels
Decreass/(increase} in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash provided by/{used in} operating activitias

(Continued)
2025 2024
£ £
16,844,000 14,598,000
1,337,000 1,183,000
880,000 796,000
460,000 396,000
(4,383,000) 23,000
(241,000} (152,000)
14,897,000 16,844,000
2025 2024
£ £
16,225,000 13,125,000
853,000 722,000
257,000 851,000
1,508,000 1,283,000
480,000 396,000
{241,000) {152,000)
19,062,000 16,225,000
(4,165,000) -
14,897,000 16,225,000
2025 2024
£ £
(2,6830,413) 16,489,514
(556,318) (18,084,983)
(46,130) (22,273)
9,018 -
(171,000) {100,000)
27,000 74,000
4,809,072 2,516,854
491,485 (1,088,906)
1,048,786 123,741
2,781,504 (92,053)
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24

Related party transactions

Cwing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
Trustees have an interest. The following related party transactions took place in the financial period.

Expenditure related party transactions

Miss K Hunston

Miss K Hunston (daughter of Mrs S Hunston, Director of Growth and Strategy) was smployed by [ffley
Academy as a Teaching Assistant in the year ended 31 August 2025. Miss K Hunston's remuneration during
the year ending 31 August 2025 was £20,168 (2024: £19,194), employer pension contributions amcunted to
£3,914 (2024: £3,724) and expenses were £Nil (2024: £Nil). The balance due to Miss K Hunston at at 31
August 2024 was £Nil (2024: £Nil).

Miss K Hunsfon's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs S Hunsten was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Miss KK Hunston is paid within the normal pay scale for her
role and receives no special freatment as a result of her relationship to the Director of Growth and Strategy.

Mr M Shaw

Mr M Shaw {son of Mrs K Shaw, Membher) was employed by lifley School as a Resources Assistant in the
year ended 31 August 2025. Mr M Shaw's remuneration during the year ending 31 August 2025 was £8,257
{2024: £7 918), employer pension contributions ameunted to £1,602 (2024: £1,536) and expenses were £Nil
{2024: ENIl). The balance due to Mr M Shaw at at 31 August 2025 was E£Nil (2024: £Nil).

Mr M Shaw's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs K Shaw was not ihvolved in tha decision-
making process regarding appointment. Mr M Shaw is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and
receives no epecial treatment as a result of his relationship to a Member.

Mir S Wawryzniak

Mr § Wawryzniak (husband of Mrs L Wawryzniak, Headteacher at Mabel Prichard until 31 Decembar 2024)
was employed by Orion School as a Teacher in the year ended 31 August 2025. Mr S Wawryzniak's
remuneration up to 31 December 2024 was £20,005 (2024: £56,061), employer pension contributions
amounted to £5,692 (2024: £14,460) and expenses were £Nil (2024: £Nil). The balance due to Mr 8
Wawryzniak at at 31 December was £Nil (2024: £Nil).

Mr § Wawryzniak's appointment was made in opan competition and Mrs L Wawryzniak was not involved in
the decision-making process regarding appointment. Mr 8 Wawryzniak is paid within the normal pay scale for
his role and receives no special freaiment as a result of his relationship to & member of Key Management.
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24  Related party transactions (Continued)

Ms A Mcltahon

Ms A McMahon (daughter of Mrs D McMahon, Trustee) was employed by Mabel Prichard School as a
Teaching Assistant in the year ended 31 August 2025. Ms A McMahon's remuneration during the year ending
31 August 2025 was £2,734 (2024: £1,030), employer pension contributions amounied to £530 (2024: £200)
and expenses were £Nil (2024: £Nif). The balance due to Ms A McMahon at 31 August 2025 was £Nil {2024:
£nil).

Ms A McMahon's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs D McMahon was nct involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Ms A McMahon is paid within the normal pay scale for her
role and receives no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a Trustee.

Mr D Holmes

Mr D Holmes (spouse of Mrs R Holmes, Head of School at Northern House Academy) was employed by Orion
Academy as a teacher in the year ended 31 August 2025. Mr D Holmes' remuneration during the year ending
31 August 2025 was £73,136 (2024: £64,062), employer pension contributions amounted to £20,694 (2024:
£16,829) and expenses were £Nil (2024: £Nil). The balance due to Mr D Holmes at 31 August 2025 was £Nil
(2024 £Nil).

Mr D Holmes' appointment was made in cpen competition and Mrs R Holmes was not involved in the
decision-making process regarding appointment. Mr D Holmes is paid within the normal pay scale for his role
and receives no special freaiment as a result of his relationship to a Head of School.

Mr J Moss

Mr J Moss (son of Mrs M Willett, Trustee and Accounting Officer) was employed at Bloxham Grove Academy
and Orion Academy as a teacher in the year ended 31 August 2025, Mr J Moss' remuneration during the year
ended 31 August 2025 was £30,526 (2024: £Nil), employers pension contributions amounted to £8,755 (2024
£Nil} and expenses were £Nil (2024: £Nil). The balance due to Mr J Moss at 31 August 2025 was ENil {2024:
£Nil).

Mr J Moss' appointment was made in open competition and Mrs M Willett was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. Mr J Moss is paid within the normal pay scale for his role and
receives no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a Trustee.

Ms A Martin

Ms A Mariin (daughter of Mrs A Martin, Mabel Prichard Head Teacher) was employed at Mabel Prichard as a
teacher in the year ended 31 August 2025. Ms A Martin's remuneration during the year ended 31 August 2025
was £34,089 (2024; £Nil), employers pension contributions amounted to £9,777 (2024: £Nil) and expenses
were ENil (2024: £NIl). The balance due to Ms A Martin at 31 August 2025 was £N1l {2024: £Nil).

Ms A Martin's appointment was made in open competition and Mrs A Martin was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. Ms A Martin is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
raceives no special treatment as a result of her relafionship to a Head Teacher.
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25

26

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she
ceases to be a member.

Agency arrangements

The academy frust distributes 16-19 Bursary funds to students as an agent for the DfE. In the accounting
petiod ending 31 August 2025, the trust received £2,698 (2024: £3,778) and dishursed £2,698 (2024: £3,778)
from the fund. An amount of £Nil (2024: £Nil} is included in Other Creditors relating to the undistributed funds
that are repayable to the DfE.
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